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Mr B Shaw                                                                             By E-mail Only
Head of Built Environment 

Essex County Council

County Hall

Chelmsford 

Essex CM1 1QH


                                       30th June 2008 

Dear Mr Shaw, 

Essex Design Initiative: An Exemplar Programme – Best Practice Charter 

Further to the above, the HBF have the following comments to make:
County-wide partnership programme
Reference is made to proponents subscribing to a 10-point ‘Best Practice Charter’. However, the draft charter as it currently stands only contains 7-points. Is this an error, or will other unspecified requirements be added in the future?
It is stated that in due course, the programme will be extended beyond just Council-owned land, to include RSL’s and the private sector.  The Federation trusts that any such roll out will be undertaken only after demonstrating that it has been successfully implemented during the pilot schemes. 
Furthermore, and that any wider implementation only occurs after further consultation with key stakeholders, and that new requirements are not imposed outside the statutory planning framework and procedures process.  

Shared ownership of the EDI

It is noted that Essex County Council, Inspire East and the Essex Planning Officers Association are now partners in the programme with CABE. The Federation hopes that the Partnership will be consistent and speak with one voice, and seek to fully understand, and wherever possible, take on board the comments and views of developers as the exemplar programme expands.
Site badging
I can imagine that not all developers would be keen to see their developments badged as exemplar projects. Some sensitivity often tends to arise in relation to any particularly type of badging of sites. Further consideration needs to be given to the nature and scope of any such badging exercise.
3. Area Masterplan / Vision
Reference is made to sustainability issues. The HBF is strongly of the opinion that any demands placed upon developers should not exceed the already challenging requirements and timescales set out in the Code for Sustainable Homes. Indeed, the Climate Change Supplement to PPS1 requires that any proposed changes to Code Level requirements are introduced via the Development Plan Document (DPD) process and fully backed up by a detailed evidence base.

4. Community Engagement
HBF Members are aware of many instances of serious differences between Council Officers and Members with regard to design and sustainability aspects when determining planning applications. Often Members do not share Officers support and encouragement for design schemes that depart from the more traditional norm. Consequently, it will be vital that a more co-ordinate and consistent approach between Council Officers and Members will be required.
5. Land Disposal
It is stated that ideally public land disposals should be considered in the context of the top 3 financial bids AND then judged in relation to the wider benefits of quality that schemes may contribute to the local environment.

This implies that if the third highest bid has the best design, this might still win the site. The Federation seeks clarification as to whether this change in procedure has been agreed and endorsed by the County Estates Department? Also, as a County wide initiative, is the same principle on land bids supposed to apply to other local authorities in Essex and if so which authorities have signed up to this, as we know not all LPA's adopted either the Essex Design Guide or Urban Place Supplement?

 

Also, the timescale on land bids for public land should be extended to allow for bidders to appoint a high quality architect. If developers are only given the normal 4-6 weeks to respond, then Local Authorities should expect the normal response back.

 

Developers must have an unequivocal answer on these points, because housebuilders will otherwise continue to plan land bids on the basis of designing to get the highest feasible revenue in the prevailing market conditions, and thus the highest financial return to the landowner. Up until now, with regard to LA site disposals, our understanding of “Best Value” is that this is a financial test.

If developers are to believe that good design and lesser floorspace may win a site, they need much clearer guidance and assurances. They would be happy to employ serious architects at land bid stage if they are confident that it would be beneficial to them.

6. Project submitted to Design Review / Reference Group / Advisory Panel
The HBF has serious concerns with regard to Design Review Panels, particularly if they are to be used on a much more widespread basis. It questions whether there are sufficient diverse and independent minded people with the necessary skills and ability available and willing to fill such Panels. It is also concerned that the Panels could bring about further delays to the planning process.
Funding
The litmus test for developers will be whether there actually any tangible benefits to them in terms of the overall time and cost of delivering new schemes.
I am sure that you are fully aware that these are extremely challenging times for the house building industry. Consequently, it is vital that anything emanating out of the EDI programme acts as an aid to housing delivery rather than a further obstacle to it. 

Next steps:

At our recent HBF Eastern Planning Forum meeting it was agreed that myself and Paul Gibbs of Persimmon Homes should ask to meet with you in order to discuss the EDI, and in particular, the Exemplar Programme further. 
I will, therefore, seek to arrange a mutually suitable date and time for this where we can discuss the development industries’ thoughts and concerns with you.
In particular, HBF Members are very keen to ensure that any planning changes or best practice documents are subject to proper public scrutiny so as to ensure they are popular with owners and tenants, in order to avoid any pitfalls.

Furthermore, given current housing market conditions it is vital that any new proposals can be shown to increase scheme viability and therefore deliverability when taken alongside all other planning and scheme related costs. 
I am sure that you are aware of Savills Research studies that indicate that buyers won’t pay materially more for sustainability or ‘celebration architecture’ for its own sake. It has been suggested that ECC should consider employing Savills Research to independent advise on this, and share the results as part of any consultation.

We look forward to discuss these and other relevant issues with you at our forthcoming meeting. I will liaise with your secretary in order to arrange a mutually suitable date and time.

Yours sincerely

Paul Cronk

HBF Regional Planner

(Eastern Region)

Home Builders Federation

White Gables, 34 Church Road, Brightlingsea, Colchester CO7 0JF
T: 01206 303825 F: 01206 303825 E: paul.cronk@hbf.co.uk   www.hbf.co.uk


